ALASKA STATE LEQ SLATURE
HOUSE JUDI Cl ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 9, 2001
1:11 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Represent ati ve Nor man Rokeberg, Chair
Representative Scott Ogan, Vice Chair
Representati ve Jeannette Janes
Represent ati ve John Coghi l
Representati ve Kevin Meyer
Representative Ethan Berkow tz
Representative Al bert Kookesh

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 32

"An Act relating to the forfeiture of property used to possess
or distribute child pornography, to commt indecent view ng or
phot ography, to commt a sex offense, or to solicit the
comm ssion of, attenpt to commit, or conspire to commt
possession or distribution of child pornography, indecent
vi ewi ng or phot ography, or a sexual offense.”

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 4

"An Act relating to offenses involving operating a notor
vehicle, aircraft, or watercraft while under the influence of an
al coholic beverage or controlled substance; relating to inplied
consent to take a chemical test; relating to registration of
notor vehicles; relating to presunptions arising fromthe anount
of alcohol in a person's breath or blood; and providing for an
effective date.”

- HEARD AND HELD
HOUSE Bl LL NO. 97
"An Act relating to court approval of the purchase of structured

settl enents. "

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -1- March 9, 2001



PREVI QUS ACTI ON

BILL: HB 32
SHORT TI TLE: SEX CRI ME AND PORNOGRAPHY FORFEI TURES
SPONSOR(S) : REPRESENTATI VE( S) HAYES

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Acti on

01/08/01 0032 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/5/01

01/ 08/ 01 0032 (H) READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

01/ 08/ 01 0032 (H JUD, FIN

02/ 09/ 01 0286 (H COSPONSOR( S) : MCGUI RE, GUESS

02/ 14/ 01 0327 (H COSPONSOR( S) :  MURKOWEKI

02/ 21/ 01 (H JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

02/ 21/ 01 (H Heard & Held

02/ 21/ 01 (H M NUTE( JUD)

03/ 09/ 01 (H) JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

BILL: HB 4

SHORT TI TLE: OMNI BUS DRUNK DRI VI NG AMENDMENTS
SPONSCR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE( S) ROKEBERG

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action
01/ 08/ 01 0024 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 12/ 29/ 00
01/ 08/ 01 0024 (H) READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS
01/ 08/ 01 0024 (H TRA, JUD, FIN
02/ 22/ 01 (H TRA AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 17
02/ 22/ 01 (H Heard & Held
M NUTE( TRA)
02/ 27/ 01 (H TRA AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 17
02/ 27/ 01 (H Moved CSHB 4( TRA) Qut of
Conmittee
M NUTE( TRA)
02/ 28/ 01 (H JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120
02/ 28/ 01 (H Heard & Held
M NUTE( JUD)
02/ 28/ 01 0470 (H TRA RPT CS(TRA) NT 1DNP 2NR
2AM
02/ 28/ 01 0471 (H DNP: SCALZI, NR KAPSNER,
KOOKESH;
02/ 28/ 01 0471 (H AM  MASEK, KOHRI NG
02/ 28/ 01 0471 (H FN1: (ADM; FN2: (ADM
02/ 28/ 01 0471 (H) FN3: (COR); FN4: (CRT)
02/ 28/ 01 0471 (H) FN5: (HSS); FN6: (HSS)
02/ 28/ 01 0472 (H FN7: (HSS); FN3: (HSS)

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 2- March 9, 2001



02/ 28/ 01 0472 (H) FNO: (LAW: FNLO: (DPS)
02/ 28/ 01 0472 (H) REFERRED TO JUDI Cl ARY
03/ 09/ 01 (H) JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

W TNESS REG STER

NATHANI EL (" NATE") MOHATT, Staff

to Representative Joe Hayes

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Buil ding, Room 422

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: On behalf of the sponsor, explained the two
proposed comm ttee substitutes for HB 32, Versions F and C.

REPRESENTATI VE JOE HAYES

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Buil ding, Room 422

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: As sponsor of HB 32, expressed a preference
for Version F, but said Version C was acceptabl e.

BILL MLLER, Captain

Anchor age Pol i ce Depart nent

4501 Sout h Bragaw

Anchor age, Al aska 99501

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on HB 32; conveyed the APD s
preference for Version F, rather than Version C, but offered
proposed change to Version F.

ALVI A "STEVE" DUNNAGAN, Li eutenant

Di vision of Alaska State Troopers

Department of Public Safety

5700 East Tudor Road

Anchor age, Al aska 99507

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During discussion of HB 32, voiced a
preference for Version F because it is less restrictive than
Version C. During discussion of HB 4, responded to a question
regardi ng current arrest procedures for DW.

DEL SM TH, Deputy Conm ssi oner

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Department of Public Safety

PO Box 111200

Juneau, Al aska 99811-1200

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During discussion of HB 4, presented
information regarding the .08 BAC (bl ood al cohol concentration)
handout s provi ded by the departnent, and answered questions.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 3- March 9, 2001



JEANNE M SWARTZ, Criminalist II

Breat h Al cohol Program

Scientific Crinme Detection Laboratory

Department of Public Safety

5500 East Tudor Road

Anchor age, Al aska 99507-1221

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: During discussion of HB 4, assisted wth
the presentation of information regarding .08 BAC handouts
provi ded by the departnent, and answered questi ons.

CHRI STI ROAN NSKI, Friends of Tom

2358 Pruitt Lane

Fai r banks, Al aska 99709

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: During discussion of HB 4, spoke on the
topic of .08 BAClimts.

MARY MORAN, Director

H ghway Safety O fice

Di vision of Statew de Pl anning

Departnent of Transportation and Public Facilities

3132 Channel Drive

Juneau, Al aska 99801-7898

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: During discussion of HB 4, spoke on issues
surrounding inplementation of .08 BAC limts, and federal
fundi ng al |l ocati ons.

KACE McDOWELL, Executive Director

Al aska Cabaret Hotel Restaurant and Retailers Association

1111 East 80th Avenue

Anchor age, Al aska 99501

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of the concept of HB 4,
and responded to questions about the TAM course.

CANDACE BROVER, Program Coordi nator/Legi sl ative Liaison

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Departnent of Corrections

431 N. Franklin, Suite 203

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: During discussion of HB 4, spoke on the
di ver si on program provi sion.

SUSAN HARG S, Boating Safety Coordi nator
United States Coast Guard

PO Box 25517

Juneau, Al aska 99802

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -4- March 9, 2001



POSI TI ON STATEMENT: During discussion of HB 4, testified in
support of lowering the BAC Iimt to .08, and provided al cohol -
rel ated boating fatality statistics.

DEAN J. GUANELI, Chief Assistant Attorney GCeneral

Legal Services Section-Juneau

Crimnal D vision

Depart ment of Law

PO Box 110300

Juneau, Al aska 99811-0300

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: During discussion on HB 4, spoke on the
topic of changing DW to DU, and the inclusion of inhalants as
a controll ed substance.

MARY MARSHBURN, Director

Di vi sion of Mdtor Vehicles

Department of Adm nistration

3300B Fai rbanks Street

Anchor age, Al aska 99503

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: During discussion on HB 4, spoke on the
topic of changing DW to DU .

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 01-29, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAIR NORVAN ROKEBERG called the House Judiciary Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:11 p.m Menbers present at the
call to order were Representatives Rokeberg, Ogan, Coghill,
Meyer, and Berkow tz. Representatives Janmes and Kookesh arrived
as the neeting was in progress.

HB 32 - SEX CRI ME AND PORNOGRAPHY FORFEI TURES

Number 0095

CHAI R ROKEBERG announced the first item of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 32, "An Act relating to the forfeiture of
property used to possess or distribute child pornography, to
commt indecent view ng or photography, to commt a sex offense,
or to solicit the comm ssion of, attenpt to conmit, or conspire
to commt possession or distribution of <child pornography,
i ndecent view ng or photography, or a sexual offense.”

Nunmber 0150

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 5- March 9, 2001



NATHANI EL (" NATE") MOHATT, Staff to Representative Joe Hayes,
Al aska State Legislature, cane forward on behalf of the sponsor
M. Mhatt explained the two proposed conmittee substitutes.
The first [Version C, 22-LS0270\C, Luckhaupt, 3/7/01] limts the
type of property that can be forfeited to electronic equipnent
only; it defines "property" wth a list of various types of
el ectronic equipnent that could be forfeited. The second
[ Version F, 22-LS0270\F, Luckhaupt, 3/7/01] is a little broader
inits limtation; it exenpts real property fromthe forfeiture,
and it limts the property to that which can be proven to have
contributed directly to the crine.

CHAI R ROKEBERG asked Representative Hayes whether he had a
pref erence between [Version C and Version F].

Number 0255

REPRESENTATI VE JOE HAYES, Al aska State Legislature, sponsor of
HB 32, specified that he would prefer Version F. Having [the
property] defined [as in Version C] l|leaves it open to a |egal
probl em because new technology could arise that is not defined
in the statute. However, he would | eave the decision up to the
committee.

CHAI R ROKEBERG asked Representative Hayes whether he agrees that
the breadth of the definition of the property in Version C is

what he first intended with the bill, and that [the definition]
could be broadly interpreted by the courts, in order to take
into account new technol ogy. Chair Rokeberg stated his own

belief that if Version C were adopted, it would not be a strain
for the courts to interpret it [broadly].

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES responded that both versions are adequate
to him He again expressed concern that some new type of
technology, in the next few years, mght not fall wunder that
definition. However, he had no problemwth either version, and
he was leaving it to the conmttee's discretion.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ expl ai ned his preference for Version F.
He pointed out that [HB 32] seens to be tal king about property
that aids in any sexual offense or assault. Although there has
been a focus on use of a conputer, a classic sexual assault
woul d i nvolve sone instrunent such as a knife or gun. If the
statute is drawn narrowy, which Version C does, then the knife
or gun couldn't be forfeited. By contrast, that forfeiture
could occur under Version F, which addresses a broader problem
of forfeiture related to crinmes involving sexual assault.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 6- March 9, 2001



CHAI R ROKEBERG asked Captain MIller of the Anchorage Police
Department whether he had seen both proposed versions and
whet her he had a preference or recommendati on.

Nunmber 0355

BILL MLLER, Capt ai n, Anchorage Police Departnment (APD),
testified via teleconference, specifying that [the APD] prefers
Version F. He noted that he is in charge of the major crines
unit, which includes the investigation of sexual assaults and
sexual abuse of m nors.

CAPTAIN MLLER explained that Version C is narrowWy defined to
i nclude conputer equipnent; it doesn't take into account other
types of sex crines. Cars, for exanple, are used to facilitate
a sexual assault, as are knives, guns, or other [inplenents].
In Anchorage, there is an increasing prevalence of date-rape
drugs, which sonetines can be nmanufactured by private citizens,
but Version C doesn't take into account the nmanufacturing
paraphernalia, for exanple. That is part of the reason why the
APD prefers Version F.

CAPTAIN MLLER offered a proposed change to Version F. He
referred to page 2, beginning at line 2, which read in part:

Property, other than real property, that contributes

directly and materially to a violation ... nmay be
forfeited to the state upon the conviction of the
of f ender.

CAPTAIN M LLER informed menbers that the APD woul d prefer to see
the phrase "other than real property” stricken. He cited
exanples in which a juvenile is taken to a house and sexually
assaulted by a predator; an adult fermale is given a date-rape
drug at a bar and is then taken to a house specifically used for
the purpose of sexual assault; and a gang rape of a juvenile
occurs as an initiation. He explained that the APD believes the
houses in those instances, as real property, are directly and
materially related to those crinmes. He asked: |f other things,
i ke guns and knives and vehicles, are at risk of being seized,
why shouldn't real property - which is owned free and clear, and
which has no innocent third party attached to it - also be
placed at risk by virtue of the fact that [its use] was planned
as an integral part of the crine?

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -7- March 9, 2001



CAPTAIN M LLER reported that the APD sees sone safeguards [in

Version F|] that it believes to be adequate. For exanple, it
requires a conviction, which necessitates the involvenent of a
neutral third party - the judge. Because there are adequate

saf equards, the APD believes that real property ought to also be
at risk when it is directly and materially related to the crine.

Number 0731

ALVI A "STEVE'" DUNNAGAN, Lieutenant, Dvision of Alaska State
Tr oopers, Depar t ment of Publ i c Saf ety, testified Vi a
t el econf erence. He told the commttee that he would echo a | ot
of what Captain MIler had said, and would be nore in favor of
Version F because it is not as restrictive as Version C. He
also said that the topic of forfeiture of real property,
i ncludi ng homes, brought up a whole set of other issues about
whi ch he would have to do research before commenti ng. However,
as far as other types of things that could be used directly to
facilitate those crines, he said he believes those should all be
subject to forfeiture too; forfeiture should not be limted to
el ectroni ¢ mechani sns.

CHAI R ROKEBERG asked whether anyone else wshed to testify;
there was no response. He closed public testinony and announced
that HB 32 woul d be held over.

HB 4 - OWNI BUS DRUNK DRI VI NG AMENDMENTS

Nunmber 0837

CHAI R ROKEBERG announced that the next order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 4, "An Act relating to offenses involving
operating a notor vehicle, aircraft, or watercraft while under
the influence of an al coholic beverage or controlled substance;
relating to inplied consent to take a chemcal test; relating to
registration of notor vehicles; relating to presunptions arising
from the amount of alcohol in a person's breath or blood; and
providing for an effective date.” [Before the conmittee was
CSHB 4(TRA). ]

CHAI R ROKEBERG noted that there would be two areas of focus for
today' s neeting: .08 [blood al cohol concentration (BAC)], and
t he change-of-title issue.

CHAI R ROKEBERG cal |l ed an at-ease from1:25 p.m to 1:26 p. m

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 8- March 9, 2001



CHAIR ROKEBERG noted that included in the nenbers' packets was
i nformati on devel oped by the Departnent of Public Safety (DPS).
He asked Del Smth to present that information and to
specifically focus on the [handout that showed the relationship
between BAC levels to DWs (driving while intoxicated)]; he
noted that there were two different nunbers that pertained to
the colum showing .08 to .0999 [BAC | evel s].

Nunmber 0975

DEL SM TH, Deputy Comm ssioner, Ofice of the Conmm ssioner,
Departnent of Public Safety, explained that the charts before
the commttee were prepared by Jeanne Swartz from information
retrieved fromthe "intoxinmeter"/DataMaster |ogs. He added that
the charts reflected six |ocations: t he Kenai Peninsula area,
the Fairbanks area, [the Juneau area, the Wasilla area], the
Anchorage area, and the Bethel area. And, while the charts did
not reflect statistics for the entire state, they did reflect a
substantial majority. M. Smth began to explain the charts
usi ng the Anchorage Police Departnment (APD) chart as an exanpl e.

CHAI R ROKEBERG interjected and said that the APD chart reflected
one year and the charts of the other areas reflected two years.

MR SMTH clarified that the APD chart reflected 1,451 DWs wth
BAC |l evels ranging from .00 to .40 during the period of 1/1/00
through 12/31/00 - 12 nmonths in a cal endar year. The note at
the bottom of the chart stated that from 1/1/98 through
12/31/99, which is the [prior] two-year period, there were 168
breath tests reflecting BAC |levels between .08 and .10. He
explained that that note was by way of a conparison wth
[ cal endar year 2000]. By dividing 168 in half, it would reflect
that there were 80-sone [DWs within that BAC range] for each of
those [two prior] years. He added that [the DPS] did not have
the tinme or resources to create charts for 1998 and 1999 in the
sanme manner as the charts reflecting cal endar year 2000. [ Thus
all six charts reflect the nunber of all DWs at all BAC |levels
for 2000, and, in addition, the nunber of DWs at BAC |evels
between .08 and .10 during 1998 and 1999.]

MR SMTH, in response to question by Chair Rokeberg, explained
that each [row] contained the nunber of individuals in Anchorage
with DWs in 2000 who, when given a breath examnation with a
Dat aMaster or an intoxineter, had a BAC |evel in the
correspondi ng colum. For exanple, in 2000 there were 61
individuals wwth DWs who tested at a BAC |level of between .08
and . 009. He added that in the 27 DW cases reflecting BAC

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 9- March 9, 2001



| evel s of .00, he understood it to nean that those individuals
were under the influence of sone kind of drug that would not
nmeasure on the intoxi meter or DataMaster.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES asked if the nunmber [under the DWs col umm]
reflected people who were given tickets for driving while under
t he infl uence.

MR SMTH answered that that colum reflected the nunber of
i ndividuals who were taken to a police station or [Al aska State]
Trooper |ocation and given a breath test.

REPRESENTATIVE OGAN inquired what the difference was in
soneone's driving ability/skills with a .08 [BAC level] as
conpared to a .10 [BAC |l evel]. He requested a conparison using
the exanple of a nman who weighs 180 pounds and who has not had
anything to eat; he asked how many drinks would be needed to
reach .08 [BAC |l evel] versus the .10 [BAC | evel].

Nunmber 1350

JEANNE M SWARTZ, Crimnalist |Il1, Breath Al cohol Program
Scientific Crine Detection Laboratory ("Crime Lab"), Departnent
of Public Safety, said, using a rough estimate, that it would
take a 180-pound i ndividual approximtely five standard drinks
(a standard drink meaning one beer or one shot of hard |iquor)
to get to a BAC level of .08, and, during the sanme tine
interval, it would take about six [standard] drinks to achieve a
.10 [BAC level]. Wth regard to the tinme interval, she said
that starting from zero, it would nean the equivalent of five
drinks in one hour, but because nobst people burn off, or
met abol i ze, al cohol over tine, it could be a cunulative effect,
say, five drinks over one hour or six or seven drinks over two
hours. She added that nost people at the field sobriety testing
| abs are quite surprised to find out how nuch alcohol it takes
to get to the "per se" |evel

CHAI R ROKEBERG added that at the |lab he attended | ast Novenber
he had to consune seven drinks in two hours to achieve that
| evel . He noted that he had consuned four glasses of w ne and
t hree beers. He also added that he had heard that people can
condition their bodies to tolerate nore al cohol.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked, with regard to |lowering the DW

BAC levels to .08, if the equi pnent being used would need to be
recal i brat ed.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -10- March 9, 2001



MR. SM TH responded that the DataMaster equipnment that is being
acquired is state of the art and is "right on."

M5. SWARTZ added that if .08 [BAC] becane the new "per se"
limt, it would require recalibrating the instrunments, but
speaking from a technician's point of view, that would not be a
difficult feat.

CHAI R ROKEBERG asked if newer intoxineters are nore accurate.

M5. SWARTZ responded that all the instrunments in service have
been tested and proven accurate and reliable, and in the case of
the newer versions, which are called DataMasters, it was not so
much that they were nore accurate, but because of newer mcro-
processing technology, they had nore features such as an
internal baronmeter, for exanple. She said that for her
purposes, a DataMaster offers distinct advantages in terns of
gat heri ng data.

Nunmber 1690

CHAIR ROKEBERG referring back to the <chart illustrating
DWs/BAC Ilevels for the Anchorage area, asked if the 61
i ndividuals who tested at a BAC |level between .08 and .09 were
convi ct ed. He added that he was wusing 61 in his initia

cal cul ations, along with a "10 percent plug," to cone up wth a
| ower percentage. He asked if the 168 breath tests included in
the note at the bottom of the chart reflected a two-year period,
conpared to the 61 individuals for a one-year period.

MR SMTH explained that of all the individuals who were
transported to the APD in 2000 and given the breath exam nati on,
61 of those individuals, nobst of whom were under arrest, had
tested between .08 and .09 BAC |evels. He expl ai ned again that
the note at the bottom of the chart reflected 168 individuals
who, during [both 1998 and 1999], tested at a BAC | evel between
.08 and .09. And again, he explained that those figures were
not broken down for each individual year, and hence would just
be rough estimates if broken down and included in a yearly
cal cul ati on. He added that with a rough breakdown of 80 each
for [1998 and 1999], the figure has dropped in 2000 to 61.

CHAI R ROKEBERG expressed confusion regarding those nunbers. He
added that he would have to recalculate to come up with the
i npact nunbers because the departnents have used a 10 percent
figure to calculate the fiscal notes on this particular
provision of HB 4, and therefore it has an inpact on the costs.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -11- March 9, 2001



MR SMTH said he was aware of that, although he cautioned the
commttee to nake use of the data in its deliberations but not
to take it as "the gospel," because the data was far from a
scientific extrapolation of all the tests.

Nunmber 1885

CHAI R ROKEBERG said he did not want to use the data against the
[departnments] just to lower the fiscal notes. He asked M.
Smth if he thought the inplenmentation of HB 4 and a .08 BAC
limt would increase the nunber of people apprehended [for
DWs], particularly based on the "probable cause" standard
within HB 4.

MR SM TH said that he did not necessarily think a .08 standard
would dramatically affect [the nunber of] people that are
stopped by |aw enforcenent, sinply because a |aw enforcenent
officer sitting alongside the road or approaching an accident
cannot determ ne whether a person is at a .08 or .11 [BAC

level]; a lower BAC limt wll not provide any nore probable
cause to stop soneone. The difference with a lower BAC limt
will be that if the offender is shown to have a .08 BAC |evel
and to be substantially inpaired, prosecution wll be nore

i kely, whereas currently, such a person mght be allowed to
plead out to sonething |ess because it was not presunptive.
[Currently], the presunption is that a .10 [BAC level] neans the
person is intoxicated, and below that |evel there nust also be a
substanti al anobunt of evidence. He added that although [a | ower
BAC level] would not bring about many nore arrests, he guessed
that nore people will go to trial, which would in turn inpact
"the downstream agencies" that deal wth individuals who have
been arrested.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES commented that "we" are always talking
about prevention, and she wondered whether reducing [the BAC
limt] to .08 would cause nore people, who don't believe they
have reached a .10 [BAC level], to refrain from driving because
they m ght be at .08 [BAC |l evel].

MR. SM TH responded that he thought [a lower BAC limt] would
have sone effect on sone people, but he noted that judgnment is
"one of the first [things] to go" when a person has been
dri nki ng. He said that he wuld Ilike to think that
substantially enphasizing and publicizing the inplenentation of
a .08 [BAC limt] would reduce the nunber of people [who drink
and drive].

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -12- March 9, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE JAMES foll owed up by saying that it seenmed to her
that the focus should not be on punishnent, but on prevention,
and she said that maybe [lowering the BAC limt] would have a
preventative effect.

MR. SM TH sai d that he hoped so.

CHAI R ROKEBERG requested confirmation that arrests were based on
an inpairnent statute, which goes down to a [BAC level] of .05,
and that it was only after a breathal yzer has been adm nistered
that charges m ght be increased to the current DW standard.

Nunmber 2128

ALVI A "STEVE" DUNNAGAN, Lieutenant, Division of Alaska State
Tr oopers, Depart ment of Publ i c Saf ety, testified Vi a
tel econference, and explained that state troopers adm nister
field sobriety tests when they stop an individual. And at that

point, if there is any sign that the person's physical ability
to drive a car is inpaired by the ingestion of an alcoholic
beverage, then that person is arrested and given either the
i ntoxi meter test or the DataMaster test.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL commented that what struck himin | ooking
at the charts provided by M. Smth was the significant junp in
[DWs] from .10 [BAC] and higher |evels. He noted, with regard
to mandatory treatnent, that [.10 BAC and higher |evels] seened
to be the level to focus on, because at |ower [BAC] |evels, such
as .08, the nunbers were less. He asked M. Smith if he thought
peopl e caught at .08 [BAC |levels] needed to [receive mandatory
treatnent] as well.

MR. SM TH explained that in the past ten years there had been
about 43,000 individuals arrested in Alaska for DW, which
resulted in about 60,000 DW charges (neaning that sone of those
arrests resulted in nultiple charges). He added that he started
out a year or two ago thinking that on an initial [DW] arrest,
an individual ought to be thrown in the drunk tank on whatever
[ substances] were on the floor and left there in order to give
that individual a wakeup call. He said he had nodified that
view sonewhat, based on research that showed of the 43,000,
about 30,000 were first-tine offenders; hence one could nmake the
argunment that first-tine offenders were getting the nessage. He
offered that sonme first-tinme offenders who fall into the
category of .08 to .10 [BAC levels] mght be starting the
progression towards [chronic DW behavior] and intervention

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -13- March 9, 2001



woul d be appropriate. And certainly, second- and third-tine
of fenders require intervention. He noted that although he was
not an expert in treatnent, these were his personal opinions.
He said that he believed that the state's current treatnent of
first-tinme offenders seenms to be having a good effect, though
there was still roomfor inprovenent.

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN also referred to the huge junp in the
nunbers from .10 and upward [BAC |l evels] reflected in the charts
(specifically the Wasilla area chart). He said that it seened
to him that people who were driving while inpaired at |ess than
a .10 [BAC level] were not attracting nuch attention from the
police. He wondered what the reason for the huge junp was. He
added that he suspected that there were a |ot of people driving
around with [BAC levels] of .08 to .09 that don't get pulled
over because they don't attract the attention of a police
officer.

MR SMTH said that he could see how one could arrive at that
conclusion and may even be right; there is a dramatic junp [in
the nunbers on the charts]. He offered that there nmay be people
who are "practiced drunks" at [the |ower BAC I|evels]. He gave
an exanple fromhis past in which a drunk driver had run into a
car in the mddle of the day and torn off an open door, but when
M. Smith arrived on the scene, it was not readily apparent that
t he individual was drunk.

Nunmber 2388

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES, on the topic of M. Smth's statenent that
30,000 out of 43,000 were first-tine offenders, noted that
Mot hers Against Drunk Drivers (MADD) had provided statistics
that show that people arrested for DW often have driven 10-12
times before getting caught for the first tine. Representati ve
Janmes asked M. Smith if he agreed with that conception.

MR. SM TH responded that the first tinme soneone is caught doing
sonething - robbing a liquor store, driving while intoxicated -
the courts treat that person as a first-tine offender, but he
said he doubted that that was the first tine the offender had
done the crine. He added that it was an extrenely unlucky
i ndi vi dual who gets caught the first tinme he/she does sonething
crimnal.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES noted that the police aren't everywhere,

and she added that she was sure there were people committing
crinmes who were "getting away with it."

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -14- March 9, 2001



MR. SM TH added that there were far fewer Al aska State Troopers
than he would like to see.

CHAI R ROKEBERG asked M. Smith if the DPS supported the .08
[ BAC] standard.

MR SMTH said yes, absolutely, though he noted it was much
easier to "get in line" after the federal nmandate. He said that
he did not think it would increase the arrests, but it was part
of the solution towards solving the problem of DWs.

CHAI R ROKEBERG noted that this |egislature had the choice, under
threat of federal law, to wait until 2007 to inplenent .08 BAC
limts.

TAPE 01-29, SIDE B

Nunber 2477

MR SMTH said that as a professional |aw enforcenent officer
and a citizen of the state, he did not see a benefit to del aying
[inpl ementation of the .08 BAClimts].

CHAI R ROKEBERG interjected that [delay of inplenentation] m ght
save sSome noney.

MVR. SMTH responded that that could be the case, but
[inplementing the .08 BAC Iimts sooner] could save sone |ives.

Nunmber 2448
CHRI STI ROWNSKI, Friends of Tom testified via tel econference

and relayed that California dropped its nunber of alcohol-
related fatalities by 12 percent after inplenenting .08 BAC "per

se." She also relayed that by lowering the BAC limts, the
states of California, Mai ne, O egon, Ut ah, and Ver nont
experienced a conbined reduction in alcohol-related fatalities
of 16 percent per year. And while she did not know how nany

i ndividual s that percentage represented, she surmsed that it
probably represented quite a few famlies that were spared a | ot

of pain. She also said that no one knows who is on the drunk
driver's wvictim list; drunk drivers kill and mim a random
sanpl e of innocent people every year. She added, "Qur famly
was |like every other victim famly, really surprised to find
ourselves on this list when our son, Tom was killed by a drunk
driver." In conclusion, she asked the nenbers of the commttee

to recognize, before voting on HB 4 or any other drunk-driver-

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -15- March 9, 2001



prevention |egislation, the random nature of the drunk driver
victimlist, and to think about each of their own children and
to ask thensel ves which of their children they would act to save
froma drunk driver if they could.

CHAI R ROKEBERG t hanked Ms. Rowi nski for her testinony, and noted
that it was the personal tragedies of the people of this state
that resulted in review of this [type] of |egislation. Chair
Rokeberg said he would next like to take up the inplenentation
i ssues surrounding [.08 per se].

Nunber 2357

MARY MORAN, Director, H ghway Safety Ofice, D vision of
Statewi de Planning, Departnent of Transportation and Public
Facilities (DOT&PF), confirmed for Chair Rokeberg that federa
fiscal year 2004 would be the first year that Al aska would be
sanctioned and be in jeopardy of mssing federal highway
appropriations. She noted that federal fiscal year 2004 is
cal endar year 2003; thus the sanction would take effect October
1, 2003.

CHAI R ROKEBERG asked if [inplenmentation of .08 BAC per se |level]
could be delayed another three years, and still allow Al aska to
recapture the federal dollars.

M5. MORAN responded that to her understanding, up until the end
of federal fiscal year 2007 Al aska could still recapture federa
hi ghway funds that are w thhel d.

CHAI R ROKEBERG said, "Looking at the ... Section 163 nonies,
indications are that if we adopt this particular standard and
neet the criteria, that we would be in line for an incentive

grant of approxi mately $800,000. |Is that correct?"

M5. MORAN said that was correct. If .08 [BAC limts] pass this
session, and are put into effect and enforced by July 15, 2001

then Alaska would be eligible to receive approximtely $848, 000
in federal funds for this federal fiscal year, and in addition

there would be approximately the same anmount for the next three
years. She added that she was not sure of the exact anount
because it would depend on how nmany states apply, the
[ popul ation] of the states, and how nuch noney is in the federal
program at that tine. She al so added that the $848, 000 would
cone in to the DOT&PF' s budget, and then either be spent through
the [H ghway Safety Ofice] or through other parts of the
DOT &PF.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -16- March 9, 2001



CHAI R ROKEBERG said that as the sponsor of HB 4 (and having an
understanding of the breadth and costs of the various elenents
of the total bill) he was very interested in ¢trying to
real | ocate/redirect some of [the federal] funds to pay for sone
of "these" costs. And although he acknow edged that [the
DOT&PF] would like to have those [federal] funds, he wanted to
know if any of that noney could be allocated to fund increased
enf or cenent, | egal costs  of public defenders, treat nent
el enents, or any of the other costs of HB 4.

Nunber 2150

M5. MORAN explained that simlar to other federal grants, wth
any of the funds that conme into her program she would then be
able to allocate a portion of those funds towards creating (wth
the help of police departnents, schools, and some nonprofits) a
program that would do sonething about [the problem of] drunk
driving. She further elaborated that "her" funds could be used
for enforcenent prograns and education prograns, but she could
not allow the funds to be used for treatnent prograns.

CHAI R ROKEBERG asked if any funds could go towards funding the
costs associated with the prosecution of "[.08] crimes,"” such as
t he Departnent of Law (DOL) incurs.

M5. MORAN responded that she would probably not be able to
all ocate funds towards that end. The noney that cones into her
program has to be wused directly for highway-safety-related
progr ans. She could put funds into, for exanple, state trooper
overtinme for enforcenment of drunk driving [laws], and in fact
she already had done that [with other funds].

CHAIR ROKEBERG referred to the N ederneyer case wherein the "Use
It, Lose It" law had been nullified. He asked if any of the
af orenenti oned federal funds could be allocated to help fund a
Junior Al cohol Safety Action Program (JASAP) or any associ ated
educational progranms that focus on m nor-consum ng of fenders.

M5. MORAN said that depending on what the program was, [that
type of allocation] was a possibility; she would have to
investigate the specific program to see if it fell within the
confines of what she is allowed to spend the noney on.

CHAI R ROKEBERG suggested that the commttee would like to nake

that [type of program funding] a very distinct possibility, and
while they could not solve all of the world' s problens today, he

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -17- March 9, 2001



said [the conmttee] would really appreciate any help M. Moran
could offer in that regard.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL suggested that once [.08 BAC limts] are
in place, signs should be erected everywhere (roads, highways,
airports, bars) as a preventative/ educational neasure.

Nunber 1985

M5. MORAN said that once .08 [BAC Iimts] gets passed she woul d
be glad to put up signs, and would be "first in line" to be
putting together a program [to erect signs]. On the issue of

why she, as the director of the H ghway Safety O fice, advocated
the adoption of a .08 [BAC] standard, Ms. Moran said that while
.08 was not a magic nunber, it was a nunber that would help
renove a few nore drunk drivers from the road, which was the
goal . She also said that she agreed with Representative Jamnes
in that [the lower BAC limt] was not so nmuch a punishnment as it
was a way to keep people alive. She acknow edged that while .08
| egi slation would not necessarily get all nultiple-repeat-DW
offenders off the road, it wll nake people nore aware that
there is a |lower threshold. She added that .08 [BAC limts]
have been shown to Ilower <crash/fatality rates, and she
acknowl edged that past that [BAC level] there is a significant
junmp in fatalities. She said that her personal feeling was that
everyone becones inpaired at .02 [BAC], and if she had her way,
she would nove the BAC limts down to .02, such as Sweden and
several other northern European countries have done. Barring
that, a .08 [BAC limt] is a start, she added, because it was
one of the many tools that, along with education and increased
enforcenent, could be used to get rid of DW drivers.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES asked, "Wy .02? Wiy not zero tol erance?
s it not enforceabl e?"

M5. MORAN said she was not sure why "they did .02." She added
that she had yet to see "anyone that's done zero. Every one has
that one small increnment in it." She noted that Sweden has an

extrenely high alcohol problem people in Sweden drink a |ot,
but they don't [drink and] drive, and that was the big

di fference. She said, "The day should conme (we'd be so |ucky)
that we get to that mndset here in America where you can drink
but just don't drive." She said she did not know why "it's not
.0."

Nunmber 1831

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 18- March 9, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE MEYER asked if the problem of increased donestic
violence is going to be created if people to stay at hone and
drink excessively.

M5. MORAN said that she had spoken with several police officers
about that topic, and she said it seened to her as though there

were mxed feelings about whether "that" really nade a
difference or not. She also said she had heard sone people say
that nore people will stay honme and drink, and she has also

heard that a good portion of people arrested for DW were at
hone drinking anyway, before [they started driving]. She added
that none of her national sources had any information on the
subject [of increased donestic violence occurring when BAC
limts were | owered].

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER said he would be interested to know the
donestic violence statistics for Sweden.

CHAI R ROKEBERG noted that the .08 provisions in HB 4 did have a
diversion program that allows for a suspended inposition of
[sentence] for the very small group of [first-tine] offenders
[with BAC levels] between [.08] and .10, whereby they could
potentially avoid any jail time if they were to conplete the
program [within] a year. He added that there were | egal
opinions that indicated that that [diversion progran] would not
j eopardi ze federal funds, and he asked if the DOI&F had a
position on the diversion [program provision].

M5. MORAN said that her research indicated that [the diversion
program provi sion] would not have any effect from the standpoint
of federal funding. She added that according to federal law, it
would be up to the states to set the standards for application
of .08 [BAC] | aws.

Nunmber 1638

KACE MDOWELL, Executive Director, Al aska Cabaret Hot el
Restaurant and Retailers Association (CHARR), testified via
tel econference and said sinply that CHARR supports the concept
of HB 4, but at this tine the board did not have any specific
position to relay to the conmttee.

Nunmber 1593
CANDACE BROWER, Program Coordi nator/Legislative Liaison, Ofice

of the Comm ssioner, Departnent of Corrections (DOC), explained
that in trying to determine what kind of a fiscal inpact the

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -19- March 9, 2001



di version program woul d have, [the DOC] used an estimate of 10
percent of first-tinme offenders who fell within the .08 and .10
BAC | evel category. That 10 percent estimated figure cal cul ated
into approximately 285 people, of which 75 people mght not
qual ify because their BAC |levels would prove to be greater than
.10 when convicted. This |eft an approxi mate pool of 210 people
who mght qualify for the diversion program And because the
di version program was specifically tailored towards sinple DWs
- between .08 to .10 [BAC Ilevels] and wthout probation
violations - [the DOC] calculated that 70 people out of 210
would fall out of conpliance with the diversion program Thus
[the DOC] estimated that the remaining 140 people who actually
conplete the diversion program would serve three days. The
calculation was then 140 [people] nultiplied by 3 days
multiplied by 64 [dollars], for a total savings of $26, 880.

CHAI R ROKEBERG noted that although the diversion program would
affect only a small nunber of people, in the current version of
HB 4, it would allow offenders to avoid the three-day jail tine.
He added that prior testinmony from APD and MADD had i ndicated
that allowing offenders to avoid that jail tinme was not a good
i dea. He asked if the DOC had any evidence that incarceration
had a deterrent effect vis-a-vis fines and other penalties.

V. BRONER responded that [the DOC] did not have any
information/statistics yet because currently there was not a
di version program being utilized, and she said she did not know
that any conclusions could be drawn yet regarding the
effectiveness of incarceration. She rem nded the commttee that
M. Smith had testified that many first-tinme offenders "seemto
get it," but she said she did not know if that was a result of
the fine, the enbarrassnent, or the incarceration.

CHAI R ROKEBERG commented that he had to ask the question because
there was sone controversy regarding [the incarceration aspect
of the diversion prograni. He noted that the actual fiscal
aspects were not significant.

M5. BROWER confirmed that the fiscal inpact on DOC with regard

to the diversion program was not dramatic. She al so confirmed
that while some DW offenders in outlying areas mght serve
their tinme in a community jail, nost would serve that tinme in a

community residential center (CRC).

Nunber 1273

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 20- March 9, 2001



SUSAN HARG S, Boating Safety Coordinator, United States Coast
Guard (USCG, testified in support of dropping the [BAC limt

from .10 to .O08. She went on to say that Al aska has been a
| eader on a national level wth regard to "boating while
i ntoxi cated"” |aws because Al aska has not differentiated between
what kind of vehicle is being operated. She noted that the
USCGs [BAC] Iimt will go down to .08 on My 11, 2001, for
watercraft. She provided the following statistics: In the |ast

four years, of the 106 nonconmercial [boating] fatalities that
occurred in Al aska, 63 were confirmed to have involved al cohol;
another 20 of those 106 fatalities could not be confirmed to
have involved alcohol, either because the bodies were not
recovered or because [BAC] tests were not perfornmed at the tine
because of a lack of outward signs of intoxication. She al so
noted that commercial operators are held to a .04 [BAC] limt.
She voiced the recognition that these fatalities have a |arge
i npact, not just on the victins, but on their famlies as well.

M5. HARGA S clarified, for Chair Rokeberg, that when she spoke of
Al aska not differentiating between operating a watercraft or
other vehicle, she was referring to AS 28, which includes
watercraft in its definition of operating a vehicle while
I nt oxi cat ed. She also clarified that the aforenentioned
fatalities had occurred in just the last four years and they
i nvol ved noncomerci al operators. She added that she would al so
provide the committee with those statistics in witten form

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked, with regard to licensing, what the
USCG s "I ook-back" provisions were for nmultiple [DW] offenses.
To clarify his question, he noted that [the USCG "pulled" a
license at a .04 [BAC level], and he asked if [the USCE had
sonmething simlar to the provisions in HB 4 regarding nmultiple
i nfractions.

M5. HARGA S expl ained that [the USCE does revoke nerchant marine
|icenses after a first offense if somebody is convicted of
operating a commercial vessel while intoxicated; [the USCGE does
not wait for a second offense to occur. She added that she was
not sure how many years a person would have to wait before
he/ she could reapply for a nerchant nmarine |icense.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL noted that he had asked Ms. Hargis those
gquestions in an effort to find out if the USCG had any | ook-back
provi sions that could be emul ated by HB 4.

M5. HARGE S, on another point, explained that [the USCG s]
boati ng-while-intoxicated (BWs) statistics are captured in DW

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -21- March 9, 2001



statistics because, for the nost part, [the USCHG works in
partnership with state and | ocal |aw enforcenent.

CHAIR ROKEBERG said he next wanted to discuss the topic of
changing DW (driving while intoxicated) to DU (driving under

the influence). On that point, he noted that one advantage of
not including that change in HB 4 was that "it nmakes the bill
lighter.™ He added, however, that changing DW to DU was

reconmmended by the Miunicipality of Anchorage's [DU Prevention
Task Force].

Number 0931

DEAN J. GUANELI, Chief Assistant Attorney General, Legal
Services Section-Juneau, Crimnal Division, Departnent of Law
(DAL), explained that several nmonths ago he had witten Chair
Rokeberg a letter, in response to an initial work draft of HB 4,
in which he had expressed m sgivings about changing DW to DU

in, literally, dozens of places in the statutes. He noted that
at the time, one of his argunents was that HB 4 would be nade
nore cunbersone by including that change. He also noted that

anot her objection he had at that time to HB 4 related to
changing the definition of alcoholic beverage, but because that
definition change no |longer exists in the current version of HB
4, that particular objection of his has gone by the wayside.

MVR. GUANELI acknowl edged that the legislature has broad
discretion to call crines what it wants to. And because (in the
current version of HB 4) statutory definitions of alcoholic
beverage and intoxicating liquor have not changed and remain
broad, he said he did not see that changing the title [of DW to
DU ] would have any inpact on enforcenent, prosecutions, or the
| aws surrounding [DW/DU]. Thus [the DOL] does not have any
objection to [changing DW to DU ], although, he added, he still
has the concern that inclusion of that change will make HB 4
harder to read. He also said, in response to a question by
Chair Rokeberg, that he did not see any legal ramfication in
terms of case law definitions, given that the definitions [in
statute] are adequate.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES asked if using the term "under [the]
i nfluence” would nake it easier to recognize the use of
substances other than alcohol so that offenders could still be
charged under the [DW/DU] | aws.

MR. GUANELI explained that current statute covers not only
al coholic beverage/intoxicating liquor but also controlled

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -22- March 9, 2001



substances, or a conbination of those things. The critical
point, in ternms of prosecutions and what juries deliberate on,
is based on the instructions given the jury by the judge. And
the instructions given by the judge are dependent on statutory
definitions that are unchanged by HB 4; thus the manner in which
prosecutions unfold would be unchanged by HB 4.

Nunmber 0649

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES said that it seened to her that the term
"under the influence" is better than "while intoxicated" because
a person could be influenced detrinentally by a substance, but
the word "intoxicated" carries with it the connotation of having
i nvol ved al cohol .

MR. GUANELI offered that jurors mght very well be nore
confortable with the title of the crine being "under the
i nfluence. ™

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES suggested that perhaps [the change from DW
to DU ] mght be easier to understand if it took the form of a
separate bill

MR. GUANELI said given that HB 4 tries to conprehensively cover
the subject of driving while under the influence, he thought it
woul d be appropriate to use the one bill, rather than two.

CHAI R ROKEBERG noted that not only is the [BAC] standard being
changed, but so is the "name," and notification of both changes

can be included in the public educational efforts. He also
mentioned that he had heard the argunent, "I can drink tw ce as
much as you can drink, and |I'm not 'intoxicated.'" By having

the term be "under the influence” along with having the |ower
BAC limt, he offered that nore people mght realize that their
judgnent is inpaired, and therefore refrain fromdriving.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked if there was any difference in
the conviction rates between states that have DW as opposed to
states that have DU

MR. GQUANELI said he did not know.

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN, on the point raised by Chair Rokeberg, said
that regardless of the anmount soneone drinks, he/she is still
under the influence. He voiced concern about civil Iliberties;
[the change of ternms to DU] mght be used as justification for
arbitrary roadbl ocks or unreasonabl e search and sei zures.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -23- March 9, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ pointed out that arbitrary roadbl ocks
coul d not be conducted in Al aska.

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN argued that there mght be arbitrary "let's
pi ck on everybody that conmes out of a bar because they're under
the influence" [roadbl ocks]. He said that he just wanted his
concern on the record; there was something unsettling to him
about the "nanme change."

Number 0327

MR. GUANELI noted that this topic was discussed in the House
Transportation Standing Commttee, and he said that it goes back
to the instructions that judges give to juries on how [juries]
are to evaluate the facts. It's sinmply not a matter of "you
wal ki ng out of the bar, and that being enough.” As a practica

matter, nost of these cases go to a jury with sone kind of a BAC
l evel, and in nost instances that level is used as a gquiding
factor in the jury's decision. So it would not just be that a
person wal ked out of a bar; that person would have to be doing
sonmething, in this case, driving a car and giving an indication
that he/she was unable to operate a vehicle with the caution
characteristic of a sober person. He added that the jury has to
find that fact beyond a reasonable doubt and be wunaninbus in
t hat deci si on.

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN clarified that his concern did not center

around juries. He said he was worried that under the
description of "DU," it would give a police officer probable
cause to pick on anybody that cones out of a bar and pull himor
her over. He asked if the probable cause standard would be

| owered in any way [by changing to the term DU ].

MR. GUANELI said that he did not believe so. He pointed out
that another provision in HB 4 changes the terns "reasonable
grounds" to "probable cause", and that change was based on an
Al aska Court of Appeals opinion that stated those ternms nean the
sanme thing. Essentially, an officer has to have probable cause
that a person is driving under the influence in order to pull
hi m her over; the officer has to believe there is sone em nent

danger to the public as a result of that person's driving. In
addition, the officer has to be able to articulate to a judge
that there were grounds to justify pulling the person over. He

noted that defense attorneys commonly argue about whether the
of ficer had enough grounds to stop a person; therefore, officers
try to minimze the likelihood that a case will get thrown out

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 24- March 9, 2001



of court by ensuring that they do have sufficient grounds to
begin wth.

TAPE 01-30, SIDE A
Number 0001

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN said he just wanted clarification that
changing DW to DU would not alter the current probable cause
st andar d.

CHAI R ROKEBERG noted that HB 4 also enconmpassed within it the
pr obabl e cause standard.

Nunmber 0069

MARY MARSHBURN, Director, D vision of Mtor Vehicles (DW),
Department of Administration, testified via teleconference. She
said that both state and federal notor vehicle agencies that
regul ate commercial drivers use the term "DU", which is the
term of art used in the national standard. That term is used
for some of the reasons previously discussed - it speaks to
driving under the influence since "intoxicated" is nore closely
associ ated with al cohol. For those who deal with the offense,
the title is not going to change the "content"” of the offense.
Whether it is called DW or DU, [agencies] know what is being
referred to. In terms of lowering the [BAC |imt] to .08, she
said DW is in favor of that change; that change is "one piece
of a large puzzle.™

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES conmented that it seened to her that if
there was a zero tolerance standard for drinking and driving,
then people would realize that if they had even one drink, they
shoul d not be driving. She asked Ms. Marshburn for her response
to that theory.

M5. MARSHBURN responded that it seened to her to nake good
sense, but the question then becones how to effectively enforce
[a zero tol erance standard].

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL, on the topic of DWW s fiscal note,
mentioned that it showed a significant amount for "registration
revocation.” He said it appears to include funding for another
position, and he asked Ms. Marshburn to comment.

M5. MARSHBURN expl ai ned that she had anticipated addressing the

fiscal note issues at a later neeting per Chair Rokeberg's
schedul i ng.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -25- March 9, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL said he would be willing to wait until
that tine.

CHAI R ROKEBERG asked M. CGuaneli to coment on the topic of
i nhal ant s.

MR. GUANELI referred to page 28, [lines 13-17], which says a
controlled substance includes a hazardous volatile material or
substance that has been knowi ngly snelled or inhaled, and that a
hazardous volatile material or substance has the neaning given
in Title 47, which is the operative definition for inhalants
that other bills before the legislature refer to. He expl ai ned
that it was his understanding from di scussions held in the House
Transportation Standing Conmttee that it was the sponsor's
intention to ensure that inhalants were included in the |ist of
controlled substances, and that is why the aforenentioned
| anguage was included in the version before the commttee.

CHAIR ROKEBERG said he appreciated hearing that explanation
because the drafter had expressed sone concern regarding the
| anguage and its proper placenent. Chair Rokeberg noted it was
his intention to allow the commttee hearings on HB 4 to be
conduct ed sonmewhat |ike work sessions.

Nunmber 0676

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER asked if the chair anticipated any
testinmony from the Anchorage Restaurant and Beverage Associ ation
(ARBA) .

CHAI R ROKEBERG noted that ARBA had provided testinony in the
House Transportation Standing Commttee, but was not present
t oday.

REPRESENTATIVE MEYER said he wanted to get ARBA s input
regarding the "TAMs training." It was his understandi ng that
bartenders are trained to look for certain characteristics of
i ntoxication, but that police officers are trained to |ook for
different characteristics; he added that if both groups could be
trained to look for the sane criteria, it would be hel pful.

M5. MDOWNELL explained that CHARR was the organization that
taught the Techniques in Al cohol Mnagenent (TAM courses, not
ARBA. She said to her understanding, the TAM courses did not
teach different criteria to determne intoxication to bartenders
than was being taught to police officers. She added that she

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 26- March 9, 2001



had |eft one of the [TAM training filnse with the police
departnment, and had not received any feedback that the training
was in conflict with what police are taught. She requested that
Representative Meyer list specific instances of differences.

Nunmber 0798

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER responded that from his past experience on
the [Anchorage Assenbly], he recalled sonme conflict because APD
determ nes soneone is intoxicated by using the "breathalyzer,"
whereas bartenders are trained to detect slurred speech and red
eyes; thus a difference of opinion occurred between the two
groups in determ ning whet her soneone was i ntoxi cat ed.

M5. McDOWELL replied that [bartenders] are not only looking to
see whether a person is intoxicated to the point of not being
able to drive; [bartenders] nust also nonitor individuals to
determ ne whether they are intoxicated, period. And the only
way to determine that is by visible signs. She noted that
[ bartenders] are also taught to take into account a custoner's
body wei ght, volune of alcohol served, and tine spent consum ng
when determ ning whet her sonmeone has becone "intoxicated."  She
al so noted that for sone individuals, "intoxicated" is achieved
at a .04 [BAC | evel].

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER offered that a "maintenance drinker" m ght
not necessarily display visible signs that he/she has had too
much to drink

M5. McDOWELL said that was correct, and that issue was addressed
in the [TAM classes as well.

[HB 4 was held over.]
ADJ OQURNVENT
Number 0969

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Judi ciary Standing Conm ttee neeting was adjourned at 3:02 p.m

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -27- March 9, 2001



